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BAKEWELL.

BAKEWELL is a market and union town, head of a
petty sessional division and county court district and
township, with a station on the Midland railway, 10
miles north-north-west from Matlock, 16 south-west
irom Sheffield, 12 east-by-south from Buxton, 1z west-
by-south from Chesterfield and 132 from London, in the
Western division of the county, High Peak hundred,
Tural deanery of Bakewell, archdeaconry of Derby and
dioccese of Southwell. The town, which is seated at the
foot of a hill on the western bank of the river Wye, over
which is a stone bridge of six arches, is first mentioned
as one of the places chosen by Edward the Elder for a
military post to overawe the Middle English; and on
Castle Hill, near the town, he raised extensive ramparts,
the mounds of which can still be traced. .

The township adopted the “Local Government Act,
1858 ¥ (21 and 22 Viet. c. ¢8), ¢ June, 1863, and was
governed by a Local Board until under the provisions
of the “Local Government Act, 1894” (56 and 57 Vict.

e. 73) an Urban District Council was established: it is
supplied with water from a reservoir fed by springs ris-
ing in the grit stone at Fallinge, near Beeley, whence it
is conducted by pipes to the dwelling houses of the in-
habitants: the footpaths are paved, and the streets
lighted with gas; the water works and gas works are both
the property of the District Council.

The parish of Bakewell is one of the largest in the
county, and once contained mine chapelries and fourteen
townships, and comprises a tract 20 miles in length from
north-west to south-east, with an average breadth of
about 8 miles, wnd affords scenery of the most pictur-
esque description. The river Wye, which rises near the
Axe Edge Hill, Buxton, divides this parish from Chapel
en-le-Frith, Hope and Tideswell, till it enters Monsal Dalé
through which it flows, and then past the town of Bake
well into the Derwent, ite whole course being aboud
21 mmiles.
| Extensive improvements in the Wye, undertaken bf




DIRECTORY, |

the direction of the Duke of Devonshire, with a view of
preventing the recurrence of disastrous inundations,
bave been completed, and in 1884 the river was cleaned
gut between Bakewell and Ashford and an island, called
“Tory Island,” formed.
All Saints parish comprises, for ecclesiastical purposes,
t of the old parish of Bakewell, and the whole of
Nether Haddon civil parish. The church, standing on
an eminence above the principal part of the town, is a
large cruciform embattled structure, about 150 feet in
length, and 105 feet in breadth, including the transepts,
and consists of chancel, clerestoried nave, aisles, porch,
fransepts and a central tower, rising from a square
lower stage into a battlemented octagon, with an elegant
and lofty spire, and containing 8 bells, all re-cast in
1796, and again in 1895: the fabric exhibits remains of
Norman work, including, at the west end, a fine Norman
doorway, Wwith an arcading above it, and other portions
belonging to a very early church, the first alterations in
which took place in 12350, when the Early English style
was well advanced : ab this time the tower piers were
in part cut away and rebuilt with pointed arches; the
upper part of the tower and the whole of the south
transept being at the same time taken down and the
transept lengthened: the chancel was rebuilt and con-
siderably lengthened towards the commencement of the
Decorated period, about 1300 or earlier; and the Vernon
chapel, forming an eastern aisle to the south transept,
built about 1360: the oectagonal tower and spire were
erected on the Early English base, at the end of the
14th or beginning of the r5th century, when also the
clerestory was added, the roofs lowered and the whole
of the parapets embattled: in 1825-6 the spire was re-
moved, and in 1830 the tower also, owing to the unsafe
condition of the piers; in 1841 extensive repairs of the
whole fabrie were begun, and completed in 1852, for a
sum of £8,600; in the course of this work the old piers
of the nave were mostly renewed in a lighter style, the
tower piers taken down and the tower and spire rebuilt,
together with the south transept and the Vernon chapel,
the original forms being carefully reproduced: in 1881
the chanecel was thoroughly restored and stalls added,
richly carved oak screen and tiled flooring and reredos
and in 1886 the choir seats were erected under the tower,
within the sonth aisle thers was anciently a chantry,
founded by Sir Godirey Foljambe, who died in 1377 and
was there buried; a small and beautifully finished monu-
ment to him and his second wife, Avena, is now against
one of the piers, with half-length alabaster figures of
both, beneath canopies; Mr. Blore, in 1803, added to
this monument an inscription on black marble; other
members of the Foljambe family are also buried here:
the mext earliest monument is that of Sir Thomas Wen-
desley, consisbting of a table-tomb, bearing his effigy
clad in plate armour, with a shirt of chain mail, and
wearing & collar of SS.; the marginal inscription records
the fact of his death at the battle of Shrewsbury, 23
July, 1403, when fighting with the Lancastrians against
the insurgents, under Henry Percy: of the Vernon monu-
ments, which are in the Vernon chapel, the earliest is that
of John Vernon, & small but well-carved table-tomb of
alabaster, with angels holding shields, and a marginal
inscription dated 1477; in the centre of the chapel is a
large table-tomb, with the recombent effigies of
Sir George Vernon knt. usually styled, from his mag-
nificent hospitality at Haddon Hall, “the King of ihe
Beak,” and his two wives: he died g Aug. 1567, but the
inscription on the tomb has never been dated, although
blanks were left for that purpose: at the south end is
the monument of Dorothy Vernon and her husband Sir
John Manners, whose romantic marriage brought Haddon
to the Manners family; the kneeling figures of Sir John
and his lady face each other bemeath an arch in the
centre; between them is a pedestal with an inscription
recording the decease of the knight in 1611 and of his
wife in 1584; above is a shield with 16 quarterings; on
the cornice are other shields, and below the central
figures are those of their four children; a still larger
and more costly tomb is that of Sir George Manners,
their eldest son, against the opposite wall, which has
also figures of the knight and his lady kneeling at a
lectern; behind is a long Latin inscription dated 1623,
ab the top of the monument the 16 quarterings of Man-
ners, and below the figures of four sons and five daugh-
ters, arranged in two rows, with scriptural texts above
each: the east wall bears & mural monument to John
Manners, third son of Sir John and Dorothy, ob. 1590:
the sonuth transept has numerous monuments of the
17th and 18th centuries, consisting chiefly of small
brasses to various retainers of the family of Manners,
with others to Latham Woodroffe (1648) and Basset
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Copwood, of Bubnell Hall (1628): in the chancel is a
brass to Bernard Wells, with inscription, dated 13 June,
1653: in pulling down different ancient portions of the
church, a large number of early gravestones and other
remains were found among the masonry, 65 of which are
preserved in the porch; 55 others having been removed
to the Lomberdale museum ; of these many are earlier
than 1100 and none later than 1260: in the porch, a
Decorated work, are a few ancient floor tiles, and above
the entrance a sun-dial of 1793: the font is a large
octagon bearing on each of ihe eight faces full-length
figures under canopies, rudely carved, and may be as-
signed to the close of the 13th cenmtury: immediately
below the Foljambe monument is an almery, and in the
south chancel wall three sedilia, with seats of varying
elevation, and beyond these a finely-worked piscina;
another, of Early English date, being found in the Ver-
non chapel: an elegant traceried screen separates the
Yernon <chapel from the south transept, and is
the finest piece of woodwork in the church;
there is also an ancient parish chest, of pre-Reformation
date, with numerous locks and braces: several stained
windows, including an east window to John Henry,
sth Duke of Rutland, were inserted in 1862: there
are 700 sithings: in the churchyard, near the east
wall of the Vernon chapel, stands a fine cross, 8
feet high, exclusive of the base, and about 2 feet wide,
sculptured with scriptural and other subjects on the
fronts, and on the sides with an elegant spiral pat-
tern, and not much later than the 8th century: the vestry
was erected in 1898 from designs of Messrs. Naylor and
Sale: in the churchyard are also several stone coffins. The
ancient custom of mnging the curfew is still ohserved here
every evening and a bell is also rung at 6 in the morning.
The Tegister, which is in very bad condition, dates from the
year 1614. The living is a vicarage, net yearly value £300,
with 240 acres of glebe and residence, in the gift of the
Dean and Chapter of Lichfield, and held since 18g7 by the
Rev. Charles Thomas Abrabam M.A. of Keble College,
Oxford.

The Catholic Church, in Granby road, is an iron strue-
ture, dedicated to the English martyrs, and is served
from Hassop.

The Wesleyan chapel, in Matlock street, was erected in
1866, and has a preacher’s house and school-rooms in
the rear: it has 4qoo sittings: the Congregational chapel,
in Mill street, built in 1795 and rebuilt in 1840, has 250
gittings ; the Reformed Wesleyan chapel, Mill street, builé
in 1888, has 250 sittings: the Society of Friends have a
Meeting house in Matlock street, with 250 sittings: the
Primitive Methodist chapel in Water street, built in 1891,
bas 1350 sittings.

The Cemetery, consisting of 4 acres, and situated south-
west of the town, belongs in part to the parish of Over
Haddon; it has two mortuary chapels and a lodge, and is
very tastefully laid out and well planted ; it is controlled
by the Bakewell Urban District Council.

The Town Hall, the property of the Bakewell Town Hall
Company Lim. opened September 18th, 1890, is a building
of stone in the Gothic style, from designs by Mr. George
E. Statham, architect, of Nottingham, and in plan takes
the form of the letter L, giving a frontage to the Square
and to Bath street, and comprising an assembly room 64
feet long and 34 feet wide, on the first floor, with a good
stage for theatrical representations, and a spacious upper
hall or landing, communicating with the stage, retiring
and cloak rooms, and also with two large rooms, one of
which is used by the Freemasons as a lodge Toom, and
the other for meetings of the Urban Council and town
committees; a spacious stone staircase leads from the
main entrance hall, which has a marble mosaic pavement,
and is entered from the Square; on the ground floor is a
court room used both by the magistrates and county
court; this room is also available for lectures, classes
and smaller social gatherings; there are other offices in
the baul.si.ldi.ng. mostly sppropriated by the government and
officials.

The Bakewell Library and Reading Room, established
in 1897, in place of the High Peak Institute, founded in
1848, 1® in the Town hall, and includes a library of 1,000
volumes.

Among the attractions of the place are the tepid chaly-
beate baths, which are thought to have been in repute
prior to the year gz4; a bathing-house was erected over
the spring in 1697; these baths were re-established by
rhe 5th Duke of Rutland K.G. and contain shower and
warm balhs and a swiraming bath inclosed with stone, 33
feet long and 16 feet wide, with a temperature of 59 or
S50 degrees, and were again restored in 1885; a readi
room is attached, which now forms the Conservative g&

The Sheffield and Rotherbam Joint Stock Banking (um-
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pany Limited, and Crompton and Evans’ Union Bank
Limited have branches here. A sgavings bank was also
erected in 1848.

Here are works for turning and polishing the black and
other marbles which are qoarried in the neighbourhood ;
there are also chert gquarries worked by several firms.

The Market is held on Friday for butter, and every
Monday for corn and cattle. The fairs for horses, cattle
and cheese are on Easter Monday and Whit-Monday, the
Monday before the 26th of August, Monday after the 1oth
of October and Monday after the rrth of November,

Ths D Co. 2nd Volunteer Battalion, Sherwood Foresters
(Derbyshire Regiment) have a depot here.

Thers are charities of considerable value, among these
being that of Mary Hague, who, in 1715, left a rent-charge
for the instruction of seven poor children until they can
read the Bible; this charity is now in the hands of the
Charity Commissioners; St. John's Hospital was founded
in 160z by Roger Manners, who left a rent-charge of £40
for the support of six poor men, each to receive L0 yearly ;
the income of this charity has since been augmented
to about fro & year by some accumulations of income
invested with the official trustees; in 1665, Robert Botd
left 10s. 8 year, b0 be given to the vicar for preaching
@ sermon at Whitsuntide, and 7s. to be given in bread
to the poor; in 1700, Robert Scholler left £z a year for the
poor, which is usually given in money; St. Andrew’s
charity consists of land, purchased with sums of money
left by varioms donors, yielding an annual income of
ﬁ:g 48. which is distributed to poor people of the town-

ip in apprentice fees and sums of £1 and 10s.; the Rev.
Francis Gisborne, sometime rector of Staveley, left in
1818 £6 128. yearly, which is given to the poor in flannel
and warm clothing by the incumbent; Catherine Broom-
head, in 1754, left £1 yearly, 10s. to be paid to the vicar
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for preaching a sermon, and ros. to the poor; in 1754,
Ellen Webster left £2 yearly, to be tjg‘liv'«en to the poor; and
in 1798, Matthew Strutt left £10, the interest to be given
to poor widows; in 1786, Mrs. May, Mrs. Baislhawe and
William Nailor also made gifts for the poor, which realize
about £1 =2s. yearly.

Burton Closes, the seati of George Hy. Taylor-Whitehead
esq. J.P. standing on an eminence overlooking the Wiye, is
a mansion in the Gothic style, chiefly designed by the elder
Pugin; the gardens, which are extensive, were laid out
by the late Sir Joseph Paxton kt. Castle Hill is the
residence of Robert William Mills Nesfield esq. D.L., J.P.;
Brooklands, of John Edward Barker ezq. Q.C., J.P.; the
Hall, which is the property of the Duke of Rutland, of
Herbert Brooke Taylor esq. ; Burre House, of John Hamile
ton Openshaw esq. J.P. and Holme Hall, of Benjamin
Armitage esq.

The Duke of Rutland K.G., G.C.B., P.C. is lord of the
manor and the largest landed proprietor in the township,
his estate here being more than 1,800 acres; he also is the
owner of a great part of the buildings in the town. In
1885 the late duke gave the use of 15 acres of land to the
inhabitants as a recreation ground, in which there are
also chalybeate springs, known as Peat Well.

The kennels of the High Peak Harriers are here.

The soil is good, mostly meadow and pasture, the
underlying rock is limestone ; the land is principally used
for grazing and the dairy.

The area of the parish proper is 2,633 acres; rateable
value for the parish proper, £17,605; the population in
1891 of the township and urban district was 2,748 ; of the
parish, 3,236, including 160 officers and inmates in the
workhouse.

Parish Clerk, George Morris.

OFFICIAL ESTABLISHMENTS, LOCAL INSTITUTIONS &c.

Post, M. & T. 0., T. M. O., Express Delivery, Parcel
Post, 3. B, & Annuity & Insurance Office.—S. Gibson
Price, postmaster. Letters arrive from all parts at 7
a.m. ; London, Derby, Manchester & Buxton 2.30 p.m.
& Derby & Sheffield 5.45 p.m.; sundays, one delivery,
commencing ab 7 a.m. Dispatched to Bakewell & rural
district 6 a.m. ; London, Derby, Mancheseir & all parts
10.15 a.m.; Derby, London & Sheffield 1.35 p.m.;
Bakewell, Chatsworth, Baslow, Alport & Youlegrave
2.15 p.m.; Derby & Manchester 4.10 p.m.; night mail
to all parts 7.45 p.m.; sundays, all parts, 7.45 p.m

COUNTY MAGISTRATES FOR THE BAKEWELL
PETTY SESSIONAL DIVISION.

Fenton Wm. esq. D.L. Churchdale, Ashford, Bakewell,
chairman

Barker John Edward esq. Q.C. Brooklands, Bakewell

Brierley William esq. Litton, Buxton

Cammell George Henry esq. B.A. Brookfield manor,
Hathersage, Sheffield

Clay Alfred esq. Darley hall, Matlock

MeOreagh-Thornhill Maj. Michael,Stanton-in-Peak,Bkewll

Martin Giison esq. Edensor, Bakewell

Nesfield Robert Wm. M. esq. D.L. Castle hill, Bakewell

Openshaw John Hamilton esq. Burre house, Bakewell

Redfern William esq. Butts view, Bakewell

Smith Richard Clifford esq. Ashford hall, Ashford

Taylor-Whitehead George Hy. esq. Burton Closes,Bakewell

Wrench Edward Mason esq. Park lodge, Baslow 8.0

Wright George Thomas esq. Longstone hall, Bakewell

The chairman, for the time being, of the Baslow & Bubnell
Urban District Council, is an ex-officio magistrate
Clerk, Herbert Brooke Taylor, Town Hall chambers

Petty Sessions are held here 1st & 3rd fridays at 1 a.m.
The following are the places in the petity sessional
division, viz.:—Abney, Ashford, Bakewell, Baslow &
Bubnell, Beeley, Birchover, Blackwell, Brushfield, Cur-
bar, Calvar, Chelmorton, Chatsworth, Elton, Edensor,
Eyam, Eyam Woodlands, Fm%at-t, Flagg, Foolow,
Gratton, Grindlow, Harthill, Hathersage, Highlow,
Hucklow (Great), Hucklow (Little), Hassop, Hazel-
badge, Hartington Middle Quarter, Ivonbrooke Grange,
Litton, Longstone (Great), Longstone (Little), Middle-
ton & Smerrill, Monyash, Nether Padley, Nether Had-
don, Offerton, Outseats, Over Haddon, Pilsley, Row-
land, Rowsley, Sheldon, Stanton, Stoke, Stony Middle-
ton, Taddington & Priestcliff, Tideswell, Wardlow,
Wheston, Winster, Youlgreave

URBAN DLSTRICT COUNCIL.
Council room, Town hall.
Council day, 1st wednesday in every month.
Chairman, George Henry Taylor-Whitehead J.P.
Vice-Chairman, William Storrs Fox M.A., F.Z.8.

Members.

Retire in April, zgoo.
William Bramwell William Henry Sims
Wm. Storrs Fox M.A., F.Z.B

Retire in April, 1go1.
Edward Green Carrington I Herbert Brooke Taylor
Anthony Walker

Retire in April, 1goz.
Rev, Fredk. Eustace Tozer | George  Henry
Benjamin Morton Whitehead 1. P

Officers.
Clerk, Vernon Reilly Cgckerton, Bridge streeb
Treasurer, Charles Henry Glossop, Bank
Medical Officer of Health, Charles Walter Evans M.B.
Matlock street

Surveyor & Sanitary Inspector, Wm. Redfearn, The Hill
Cab Inspector, Henry Bramwell, Oddfellows’ buildings
Collector, James F. Radford, Castle street
Gas Works Manager, T. W. Tiplady, Buxton road
Markets & Water Works Manager,Wm. Redfearn, The Hill
Cemetery Superintendent, James Elliott

Taylors

BAKEWELL RURAL DISTRICT COUNCIL.
Meet monthly, after meeting of the Bakewell guardians.

(Clerk, Alfred Hawes, Union offices, Bakewell

Treasurer, C. H. Glossop, Sheflield & Rotherham hank

Medical Officers of Health, South district, John Knox
M.D. Church house, Bakewell; North district, Philip
Sheldon Fentem M.D. King street, Bakewell

Sanitary Inspectors & Highway Surveyors for Districh
Roads, Albert Toft, Younlgreave, Bakewell, South dis
trict ; Thomas Hawley, Monyash, Bakewell, North disé

PUBLIC ESTABLISHMENTS.

Baths, Herbert Boulsover, manager

Cemetery, James Elliott, superintendent

County Court, His Honor Wm. Cecil Smyly Q.C. judge;
H. Brooke Taylor, registrar & high bailiff. The courk
is held monthly at the Town hall, on thursdays as fixed
by the judge, at 10 a.m.; the district comprises the
following places:—Abney, Abney Grange,Ashford, Bake-
well, Baslow & Bubnell, Beeley, Barwood Grange, Birch-
over, Bradwell & Smalldale, Brushfield, Calver, Chel~
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morton, Curbar, Edensor, Eyam, Eyam Woodlands,
Grindleford Bridge, Flagg, Foolow, Fretton, Froggait,
Gratton, Gri_ndlow, Over Haddon, Nether Haddon,
Harthill, Hartington Middle Quarter including Crowdy-
cote & Sterndale, Hassop, Hathersage, Hazelbadge,
Highlow, Hucklow (Great), Hucklow (Libtle), Litton,
Crossbrook, Longstone (Great), Longstone (Little),
Monsal Dale,Middleton by Youlsgreave, Monyash, Nether
Padley, Offerbon, Qutseats, Pilsey, Rowland, Rowsley
& Alport, Sheldon, Stanton & Pilhough, Stanton Lees &
Eagletor, Stoke, Stony Middleton, Taddington, Priest-
cliff, Tideswell & Miller’s Dale, Wardlow, & Wardlow
Meer, Wheston, Youlgreave

For Bankruptcy purposes this court is included in that
of Derby; Frederick Stone, 40 St. Mary’s gate, Derby,
official receiver; T. H. Harrison, Derby, assistant official
receiver

Bailiff to the Court, Edgar Alid. Bingham, Nth. Church st

Dispensary & Lying-in Institution, King street, Charles
Walter Evans M.B. & John Knox M.D. hon. surgeons;
William Redfern, hon. sec

Inland Revenue Office, Matlock street, David Young,officer

Police Station, Granby road, William Lytle, superinten-
denb, 1 sergeant & 2 constables

Town Hall, Dan Hughes, keeper

BAKEWELL UNION, formed July 21, 1838.

Board day, every alternate monday ab 11.30 a.m. at the
Workhouse.

Bakewsll Union comprises the following places:—Abney &
Abney Grange, Aldwarke, Ashford, Bakewell, Baslow
with Bubnell, Beeley, Birchover, Blackwell, Bradwell,
Brushfield, Calver, Chatsworth, Chelmorton, Cromford,
Curbar, Darley, Edensor, Elton, Eyam, Eyam Wood-
lands, Flagg, Foolow, Froggatt, Grange Mill or Ivon-
brook Grange, Gratton, Great Hucklow, Great Long-
stone, Grindlow, Hartington Middle Quarter, Hartle
or Harthill, Hassop, Hathersage, Hazelbadge, Highlow,
Little Hucklow, Little Longstone, Litton, Matlock, Mat-
lock Bath, Monyash, Middleton & Smerril, Nether Had-
don, Nether Padley, Offerton Outseats, Outseats, Over
Haddon, Pilsey, Rowland, Rowsley & Alport, Sheldon,
Stanton Stoke, Stony Middleton, Taddington & Priest-
cliff, Tansley, Tideswell, Wardlow, Wensley & Snitber-
ton, Wheston, Winster & Youlgreave. The area of the
whole union is 104,617 acres; rateable value in 1898,
£208,685; the population in 1Bgr was 32,153.

Clerk to the Guardians & Assessment Committee, Alfred
Hawes, Union offices, Bakewell

Treasurer, C. H. Glossop, Sheffield & Rotherham Bank

Collectors & Relieving Officers, North district, William
Bennett, Rowland ; South district, John Milton Toft,
Youlgreave, Bakewell

Vaccination Officers, see Registrars

Medical Officers, Bakewell district, Philip Sheldon Fentem
M.D. King street, Bakewell; Baslow district, Edward
Branson Wrench M.B., C.M. Baslow; Cromford dis-
trict, John Caithnesg Innes L.R.C.P.Edin. Barton villa,
Matlock Bath; Eyam district, John Albert Lee L. R.C.P.
Fdin. Eyam ; Hartington Middle Quarter distriet, John
Enox M.D. Church house, Bakewell; Matlock district,
William Moxon L.R.C.P.Edin. Matlock; Tideswell dis-
trict, Thomas Henry Parke L.R.C.P.Edin. Tideswell;
Winster district, James Lyon Fletcher M.B., C.M.Edin,
Winster

All Medical Officers are Public Vaccinators of the districts,
with the exception of Cromford, where George Harvey
L.R.C.P.Edin. Wirksworth, is public vaccinator, & Bas-
low, where Edward Mason Wrench F.R.C.S.Eng. is
public vaccinator

Superintendent Registrar, Alfred Hawes, Register office,
Bakewell

Registrar of Marriages & Births & Deaths, Bakewell sub-
district, Wm. A. Gregory, Rutland street, Bakewell;
deputy, Josiah Carrington, North Church street, Bake-
well; Matlock sub-district, John Evans, Darley Dale;
deputy, Anthony Gregory, Two Dales, Matlock Bath;
Tideswell sub-district, Edward Hunstone, Tideswell;
deputy, Clarence Hunstone, Tideswell

The registrars act as vaccination officers for their respec-
tive districts

Workhouse, for 220 inmates, Alired Swain, masbter; Chas.
Walter Evans M.B. medical officer; Rev. Charles Thos.
Abraham M.A. chaplain; Mrs. Swain, matron

PRIVATE RESIDENTS.
Abraham Rev. Charles Thomas M.A,
(vicar & chaplain to the workhouse),

Yicara Brooklands
ﬁfred Joseph, Bank house,

Adams
Walter street
Allsop Thos. Woodbine cot.Coombes rd
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Armitage Benjamin, Holme hall
Bagshaw Misses, Woodside
Barker John Edward Q.C., M.A. J.P.

Berry Mrs. The Avenue
Bowmar Charles J. Urderwood
Bown John, Castle street
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School Attendance Committee.

Meet fortnighktly, same day as Guardiansg, but before
meeting of guerdians

Clerk, Alfred Hawes, Union offices, Bakewell

School Attendance Officers, South distrist, Edward Shim-
well, Youlgreave; North district, Wm. Bennett, Row-
land ; West district, Wm. A. Gregory, Rutland street,
Bakewell

VIOLUNTEERS.

2nd Velunteer Batfalion Sherwood Foresters (Derbyshire
Regiment) D Co. Capb, A. Brown, commanding; G.
H. Taylor-Whitehead, lieut.; Surg.-Lieut.-Col J. Knox
V.D. medical officer; Sergt. James Henry Green, drill
instructor; strength of Co. about 100

PUBLIC OFFICERS.

Certifying Factory Surgeon, Charles Walter Evans M.B.
Matlock strest

Inland Revenue Officer, David Young, Matlock street

Supenintendent of County Constabulary, William Lytle,
Granby road

Surveyor of Taxes, George Bradbury, Town hall

PLACES OF WORSHIP, with times of services.

All Saints’ Church, Rev. Charles Thomas Abraham M.A.
viear; Rev. William D. Braginton & Rev. Lockhart W.
Greenshields B.A. curates; 8 & 1o0.30 a.m. & 6.30 p.m.
& daily at 8 a.m. & 5 p.m. except wed. which is 7.30 p.m

Catholic, Granby road, served from Hassop; mass with
sermon, g a.m.j devobions, sermon & benediction 4
p-m.; thurs. 7 pm.; fri, mass 8 a.m

Congregational, Buxton road, Rev. F. Eustace Tozer; 10.45
a.m. & 6.30 p.m. ; wed. 8 p.m

Salvation Army, Matlock street

Primitive Methodist, Water street, Rev. A. Beavan; 2.30
& 6.30 p.m.; tues. 8§ pm

Wesleyan, Matlock street, Rev. John H. Rogers; 10.30
am. & 6.30 p.m,; thurs. 8 p.m

Wesleyan (Reformed), Buxton rd. ; 10.30 a.m. & 6.30 p.m

SCHOOLS.
Lady Manners’ Grammar School.

In 1637 Lady Grace Manners devised /£15 yearly, charged
on land at Elton, now in the possession of the
Duke of Rutland K.G., G.C.B.; for many years the
income from this charity was allowed to accumulate,
until in 1893 it amounted to £1,250, when a scheme being
propounded for the building of schools for technical in-
struction, the County Council made an addition of £6oo
to the fund, & a school was erected in 1895 for science
teaching, which is also the centre for the Cambridge
University local examinations; it has an annual endow-
ment of £45, & a grant of £150 a year from the County
Council, & receives further grants from South Kensing-
ton. There are 17 scholarships besides minor prizes.
The number at present (1899) in the school is 116; the
management is intrusted to a board of governors. The
head master receives a limited number of boarders at
his private residence; Charles J. Mansford B.A., F.C.S.
head master; W. H. Heathoote, hon. clerk to the
governors -

Church of England (girls & infants), erected in 1872, for
120 boys, 150 girls & ros infante; average attendance,
104 boys, 103 girls & g4 infants; Sydrey Alleock, mas-
ter; Miss Emma Salt, girls’ mistressy Misk Mary
Elizabeth Salt, infants’ mistress .

Wesleyan (mixed), erected in 1778 & enlarged 7330, for
130 children; average attendance, ¢7; Matthew H,
Hobson, master

Conveyance.

Railway Station, Thomas Pitt, station master
An omnibus meets every train abt Bakewell station

Carriers.

Chesterficld—Robert Hage, from his own house, sat.
returning same day

Sheffield—Robert Hage, tues. thurs. & sab. reburning
same days

Bradbury George, Brookfield

Braginton Rev. William D. (curate),
Westfield

Broomhead Henry, Stone Edge house,
The Hill

Carrington Edwd.Green,The Meadows

Carrington John Neave, The Avenue
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Carrington William Alex. Castle st
Cockerton Vernon Reilly, Riversley
Cooper George Frederick, Ivy house,
South Church street
Cross Robert, Milford house
Crow Joseph Richard, Fern bank
Evans Chas. Walter M.B. Matlock st
Fentem Philips Sheldon M.D. Cateliff
Foster Alfred, South Church street
Fox William Storrs M.A., F.Z.S. St.
Angelm’s
Freeman Archibald, The Mount
Furniss George, Endcliffe house
Gilder John George, Brook house
Glossop Charles Henry, Butland sq
Glossop Mrs. Butts cottage
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Haywood Miss, Matlock street

Heathcote William Hy. Burton house

Hutchinson Robert, Wye cottage

Ingleby John, The Avenue

Jackson Richard Houlton, Bath street

Kentish Mrs. Knighton cottage

Knox John M.D. Church house

Lees George Wyld, Yew Tree house

Lindsay Mrs. The Avenue

Longsdon Rev. Hy.Jn.M.A.TheAvenue

Mann Mrs. West bank

Mansford Charles Jodrell B.A., F.C.S.
(head master of Grammar school),
The Avenue

Morton Benjamin, Aldin house

Nesfield Robart William Mills D.L.,

[RELLY’S

Parsons Mrs. Parsonage house

Pearsen Edward Wager, Norwood

Redfern William J.P, Butts view

Roberts Mrs. Woodland view

Robertson Mrs. Orchard house

Rogers Rev. John H. (Wesleyan), The
Manse, Matlock street

Severn Herbert, Lyndhurst

Sporle Miss, The Avenue

Swaine Mrs. South Church street

Taylor Francis James, Overdale

Taylor Herbert Brooke, The Hall

Taylor James, King street

Taylor Mrs. George, Matlock street

Taylor-Whitehead George Henry J.P,
Burton Closes

Goodwin FrankSwettenham,Bridge ho

Greaves Mrs. The Hayes

Greenshields Rev. Lockhart W., B.A.
(curate), The Avenue

Grindy Mrs. Matlock sireet

J.P. Castle hill

Open

COMMERCIAL.
Adamg Alfred Joseph, manager Crompton & Evans’ Bank,
Rutland square
Allcard John William, plasterer, Coombes road
Allsop T. & Sonm, builders, contractors & builders’ mer-
chants, Bath street
Allsop R. W. & Co. chert quarry owners
Allsop Charles, shopkeeper, Buxton road
Allsop George, farmer, The Coombes
Anthony Joseph Skidmore, farmer, Field cottage
Bacon Margaret (Miss), apartments, The Avenue
Bagshaw Isaae, farmer, Green Cowden
Bailey Ernest Henry, miller (water), Victoria mill
Rakewell Agricultural Society (Joseph S. Anthony, sec)
Bakewell Farmers’ Club (Joseph S. Anthony, sec
Ba]l:ewell &3 District Naturalist Field Club (F. W, Pickard,
on. sec
Bakewell Library & Reading Room (Charles J. Bowman,
hon. sec.; Miss H, E. Bingham, librarian), Town hall
Bakewell Town Hall Co. Lim. (E.Morewood Longsdon,sec)
Bakewell Urban District Gas Works (Samuel Barlow,
manager), Buxton road
Bamford John, stone merchant, Prospect house
Barrett: Joshua, outfitter, North Church street
Baths (Herbert Boulsover, manager)
Bingham H. E. (Miss), private school, Buxton road
‘Blackwell John, boot & shoe maker, Bath street
Blaker George, Queen’s Arms P.H. Bridge street
Boden S. & M. (Misses), apartments, Buxton road
Boden Samnel Standidge, insurance agent, Matlock st
Booth & Wright, silk mercers, linen & woollen
drapers, ‘tallors, dress makers, milliners, funeral
furnishers & undertakers, King street
Bowman William Henry, grocer & provsn, dlr, King sb
Bown Joha, insurance agent, Castle street
Bradbury George, surveyor of taxes, Town hall
Bradbury John, marble mason, North Church street
Bramwell J. & Son, stone masons & builders, Buxton road
*Bramwell Edward, builder, The Hill
Bramwell Henry, cab inspector to the urban district coun-
cil, Oddfellows’ buildings
Bramwell William, builder & contractor, South Church st
Briddon Elizabeth (Mrs.), Anchor P.H. Anchor square
Briddon George, apartments, Westfield terrace
Briddon Thomas, whitesmith, cycle agent & repairer,
Bath street
Broomhead Mary (Mrs.), sanitary plumber, gas &
water fitter, Rutland street
Broomhead William H. tobacconist, Buxton road
Bucknall Saul, tailor, Bridge street
Callow Rebecca A. (Mrs.), draper, Matlock street
Caltonr Golf Club (Vernon R. Cockerton, hon. sec)
Carrington Edward Green, chemist, druggist & seedsman,
Matlock street
Carrington John A, tobacconist, Bridge street
Carrington Josiah, hair dresser & deputy registrar of
births, marriages & deaths, North Church street
Carroll Richard, haulier, Buxton road
Cemetery (James Elliott, supt)
Chesterfield Brewery Co. Limited (Mathew Gregory,agt.),
Buxtfon road
Clark Mary (Mrs.), shopkeeper, Matlock street
Clark William, sarveyor to the Duke of Rutland, Castle st
Clay Mark, farmer, Monyash road
Clulow H. & Son, fishmongers, King street
Cockerton Vernon Reilly (firm, Goodwin & Cockerton),
solicitor & commissioner for oaths & clerk to the Bake-
well & Baslow urban district councils, Bridge street
County Court (His Honor William Cecil Smyly Q.C.
judge; H. B. Taylor, registrar & high bailiff),Town hall

Nimmo Miss, The Butts

Noton George, Castle street

shaw John HamiltonJ.P.Burre ho
Orme Stanley, Granby

Thompson Charles,Wye bank,Castle st

Tozer Rev. F. Eustace (Congregatnl.),
Monyash road

Wallis Mrs. Haddon villa

Wardley Miss, Woodland view

Conservative Club (T. B. Mellor, sec.), Bath street

Critchlow Charles, butcher & boot dealer, Rutland square

Crompton & Evans’ Union Bank Lim. (Alfred Joseph
Adams, manager), Rutland square; draw on Glyn,
Mills, Currie & Co. London E C

Crow & Co. drapers, milliners & outfitters, The Square

Dawson John William, hide & skin dealer, Lumford house

Derbyshire Joseph, wheelwright, Matlock road

Dispensary & Lying-in Institution (A. J, Adams esq.
treasurer; William Redfern, hon. sec.; Charles Walter
Evans M.B, & John Enox M.D. hon, surgeons), King st

D. P, Battery Co. Lim. (The), electric accumulator manu.
facturers, Lumford mills

Elliott James, superintendent of cemetery

Evans Charles Walter M.B. surgeon, medical officer of
health to the urban district council & to the workhouse
& certifying factory surgeon, Matlock street

Fentem FPhilip Sheldon M.D., M.R.C.S.Eng. surgeon,
medical officer & public vaccinator, Bakewell district &
medical officer of health North district of rural district
council, King street

Fewkes Anne Eliza (Mrs.), fancy repository, Matlock st

Fewkes Fanny (Mrs.), apartments, 2 Rutland terrace

Finney & Sons, butchers, Buxton road

Fire Engine Station (F. Elliott, captain), Butts road

Foster Alred, coal merchant, Railway station

Foster Jobn, Peacock inn, Cattle market

TFox William Storrs M.A., F.Z.S. Preparatory School,
St. Anselm’s

Freemasons (Dorothy Vernon Lodge, 2129), Town hall

Frost George E. blacksmith, Rock terrace

Frost James, carpenter & blacksmith, Monyash road

Frost Wm. Slater, Royal Oak hotel, & painter, Matlock st

Garner Mary J. (3rs.), apartments, 3 Rutland terrace

Gas Works (T. W. Tiplady, manager)

George Annie (Mrs.), apartments, The Avenue

Gibbs Julia (Mrs.), refreshment rooms, Bridge street

Gilder Thomas Hannaford, reporter, The Avenue

Gimson Harriet (Mrs.), apartments, Bridge cottage

Glossop Charles Henry, manager of Sheffield & Rother-
ham Bank & treasurer {0 urban & rural district councils
& Bakewell union, Rutland square

Goodwin & Cockerton, solicitors, Bridge st. ; & at Tideswll

Goodwin Frank Swettenham, solicitor & perpetual com-
missioner (firm, Goodwin & Cockerton), Bridge street

Goodwin Joseph A. boot & shoe warehouse,Nth. Church st

Goodwin Thomas William, saddler, Matlock street

Gordon John, chimney sweeper, The Hill

Gratton James, printer & stationer, Matlock street

Green G. & Co. butchers, Buxton road

Green Sergt. James Henry, drill instructor to D Co. 2nd
V. B. Sherwood Foresters, Bridge street,

Gregory William A, registrar of births, deaths & mar-
riages, vaccination officer & school attendance officer,
West district, Rutland street

Haddock George, farmer, South Church streef

Hage Robert, farmer & carrier

Hawes Alfred, clerk to the guardians & assessment &
school attendance committees & supt. registrar of Bake-
well union & clerk to the Bakewell rural district coun-
cil, TUnion offices

Hawley William & Joseph, butchers, Buxton road

Heathcote James, stone mason, Church street

Hensberg Robert, water bailiff to the Duke of Rutland,
Elliott holme

Hewitt William, apartments, The Mount

Higgott Tom Heywird M.R.C.V.S.Lond. veterinary sur-
geon & Red Lion commercial hotel & posting house &
caterer for picnic parties, Rutland square

Higginbottom Jane (Mrs.), greengrocer, Buxton road




DIRECTORY.

High Peak Harriers (George H. Taylor-Whitehead esg.
J.P. master; Robert Fairclough, huntsman)

Hill George & ‘Co. Lim. boot & shoe warehouses, Water st

Hill Edward, tailor, Matlock street

Housley William, boot maker & tobacconist, Matlock st

Howard Alfred, nurseryman, Bagshaw hill

Howard Joseph, blacksmith, Bridge street & Matlock st

Hudson William, Castle commercial hotel & posting &
head quarters of O, T. C. Bridge street

Hughes Dan, Town hall keeper

Hunter’s The Teamen Lim, grocers, Bridge streef

Hurt George Abraham, watch maker, Matlock street

Ingleby John, insurance agent, The Avenue

Inland Revenue Office (David Young, officer), Matlock st

Jackson Richard Houlton L.R.C.P. surgeon, Bath street

Jeoes Samuel, apartments, Bridge street

Keetley William, apartments, The Avenue

Kerslake Herbert J. pork butcher, Buxton road

Kitson Charles, King's Armg P.H. Buxton road

Enight Barbara & Evelyn (Misses), priv. school, Bath st

Knox John M.D., L.R.C.S.Edin. surgecn, medical officer
& public vaccinator for Hartington Middle Quarter dis-
trict & medical officer of health South district of rural
district council, Church house

Lingard Thomas, clog maker, Buxton road

Littlewood Herbert, whitesmith & hot water engineer,
Granby road

Longsdon Ernest Morewood, architect, surveyor &
valuer, actuary to Savings Bank & sec. to Town Hall
Co. Limited, Town hall

Lomas Frank, coal merchant, Railway station

Lytle William, supt. of county constabulary, Granby road

Manrers (Lady) Grammar School (Charles J, Mansford
B.A, F.C.S. head master)

Marsden Frederick, shoe maker, Buxton road

Marsden William, farmer, Bole hill

Mellor George, Wheatsheaf P.H. Bridge street

May Thomas Henry F.3.1. auctioneer, valuer & estate
agent, land & mineral surveyor, stock, share & insur-
ance broker, Rutland chambers

Mellor Thomas Barker, organist, Chantry house

Mellor William, tailor, see Quail & Mellor

Mogshaw, Thompson & Co. chart quarry owners, Deep
Dale quarry

National Telephone Co. Lim.; call cffice, Bath street

Naylor Jane (Mrs.).Devonshire Arms P.H.NorthChurch st

Neasdham Charles, saddler, Bridge street

Nelson Franeis, pork buicher, Buxton road

Nesfield Robert William Mills D.L., J.P. agent to the
Duke of Rutland, Castle hill

Noton Wiliam, farmer, Mill streeb

Noton William, Manners P.H, Matlock street

0dd Fellows’ Hall (Joseph Rodgers, sec.), The Hill

Orme Robert & Co. wholesale & retail grocers, provi-
sion dealers, wine, spirit & beer merchants, The Square
& Water street ; & at Matlock Bridge

Oxford University Extension Lectures (Miss K. Martin,
sec.), Town hall

Palfreyman Albert, saddler, Buxton r¢ad

Payne Timothy, boot & shoe dealer, Matlock street

Pearson Edward Wager, chert quarry owner, Norwood

Plant Arthur M.R.C.V.S. veterinary surgeon & inspector
under C. ID. (Animals’) Act for Bakewell dist.Granby rd

Price 8. Gibson, postmaster

Pursglove Thomas, farmer, Derby gate

Primrose League, Bakewell (Rutland) Habitation (Miss
€. Underwood, sec.), Castle hill

Proctor John, apartments, North Church streeb

Quail & Mellor, tailors, hatters, hosiers & general
outfitters; breeches & liveries a specialty, The
Square

Radiord Jam3s F. accountant, auctioneer & insurance
agent & collector to the urban district council, Castle st

Redfearn William, surveyor & sanitary inspector & mar-
kets & water works manager to the urban district
councll, The Hill

Roberts Frank, plumber & glazier, Matlock street

Robinson George, beer retailer, Matlcck street

Rogers Harry, hair dresser, Buxton road

Rose Hugh, baker, Matlock street

Rouston William, commercial traveller, 4 Rutland terrace

Rowland & Wain, ironmongers, Bridge street

Bowland Alfred Vincent, tinplate worker, Matlock sireet

Rowland John, cab proprietor, Station road

Rutiand Arms Family Hotel & posting house (Thos.
Tyack, proprietor), Rutland square; ’bus meets all
trains
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Rye Henry Arthur, architect, surveyor & clerk of works
to the Duke of Rutland. Castle streeb

Savings Bank (E, M. Longsdon, actuary) (open mondays
from 10 to 1), Bath street

Sellors John & Son, slaters, North Church street

Sellors Joseph, slater, North Church street

Sellors Mary E. (Mrs.), confectioner, Matlock streeb

Sellors Mary (Miss),millnr, & fancy drpr. Nth. Church sb

Sheffield & Rotherham Joint Stock Banking Co. Limited
(braneh) (Charles H. Glossop, manager), Rutland sq.;
draw on Barclay & Co. Limited & London & Westmin-
ster Lim. London, Bank of Ireland & Belfast Banking
Co. & British Linen Co, ; sub-branches at Baslow, open
wed. & Darley Dale, fri

Simpson Benjamin, cab proprietor, Matlock streeb

Sims John Henry, beer retailer, Water street

Sims Wm. Hy. furniture dealer & news agent, Bridge st

Skevington: Henry, painter & paperhanger, Bridge street

Skidmore John & Richard, provision dealers, Buxton rd

Skidmore James, farmer, Monyash road

Slater Henry, draper, Bridge street

Smith Joseph & Sons, chert quarry owners, Holme bank

Smith George, farmer, Buxton road

Smith James, farmer, Burton Moor farm

Smith John, greengracer, Buxton Toad

Smith Robert, builder, contractor & timber merchant,
Castle street

Smith Wm. cowkeeper & insurance agent, Butts road

Smith William, insurance agent,

Stafford John, farmer, Ball Cross farm

Stearn Rupert, photographist & picture frame
maker, Art studio, Buxton road; branch of the
modern circulating library

Stone John, watch maker, King street

Sutton J. E. dentist, The Square (attends mondays)

Tarlington Thomas, beer retailer, Bridgefoot

Taylor F. & H. solicitors & commissioners to administer
oaths, Town Hall chambers

Taylor Francis James (firm, Taylor F. & H.), solicitor &
perpetual commissioner, clerk to the commissioners of
taxes & steward of Ashford manor, Town Hall chmbrs

Tavlor Herbert Brooke (firm, Taylor F. & H.), solicitor
& commissioner to administer oaths, clerk to the county
magistrates, Bakewell petty sessional division, registrar
& high bailiff of county court & steward of Hartington
manor, Town Hall chambers

Taylor Walter, carriage painter, Matlock Toad

Thacker Thomas, butcher, Matlock street

Thompson Benjamin, butcher, Matlock street

Thompson John R. chemist, grocer & agent for W. & A.
Gilbey Limited, wine & spirit merchants, King street

Tiplady T. W. mgr. of Urban Dist. Gas Works, Buxton rd

Tomlinson Elias, watch & clock maker & insurance agent,
Matlock street

Town Hall (Dan Hughes, keeper)

Townsend Jamaes, apartments, The Avenue

Tvack Thomas, Rutland Arms hotel, Rutland square; &
at Royal hotel, Matlock Bath

Urban District Council Water Works (Williamm Redfearn,
manager) ; office, Town hall

Volunteer Battalion (znd) Sherwood Foresters (Derby-
shire Regiment) (D Co.) (Capt. A. Brown, command-
ing; George H.Taylor-Whitehead, lieut. ; Surg.-Lieunt.-
Col. J. Knox V.D. medical officer; Sergt. James Henry
Green, drill instructor)

Wain George, coal merchant, Railway station

Wain Sampson, ironmonger, see Rowland & Wain

Walker Joseph, farmer, Stoney close

Wallis Sarah (Mrs.), ironmonger, Bridge street

Wallwin William, farmer, Haddon grove

Wardley Charles F. bookseller, Rutland square

West Derbyshire Conservative Association (Northern
division) (T. B. Mellor, local agent), Castle street

Wheatcroft N. & Son, coal merchants, Railway station

Whittaker William Henry, confectioner, Matlock street

Wigley William, boot & shoe dealer, Matlock street

Wilson Elizabeth & Jane (Misses), milliners & dress mas.
1 Butland terrace

Wilson Annie (Mrs.), confectioner, Rutland square

Witham Charles, shopkeeper, North Church street

Woodhead E.& Sons Lim.grocers & prov. dirs. Bridge st

Woodiwiss Henry, carriage painter, Buxton road

Working Men’s Club (William Redfearn, sec.), King sb

Wright Charles Henry, draper, ses Booth & Wright

Wright Walter Herbert 1.D.S.,D.E.D.Paris,surgn.-dentist

Wyatt Joseph, hair dresser, The Square

Young David, inland revenue officer, Matlock street
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